



IOTC-2023-SCAF20-R[E]

# Report of the 20th Session of the Standing Committee on Administration & Finance

Mauritius, 4 May 2023

**DISTRIBUTION:** 

Participants in the Session Members of the Commission Other interested Nations and International Organizations FAO Fisheries Department FAO Regional Fishery Officers

#### **BIBLIOGRAPHIC ENTRY**

IOTC 2023. Report of the 20<sup>th</sup> Session of the Standing Committee on Administration and Finance. 4 May 2023. *IOTC-2023-SCAF20-R[E], 23pp.* 

The designations employed and the presentation of material in this publication and its lists do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission (IOTC) or the Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) of the United Nations concerning the legal or development status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries.

This work is copyright. Fair dealing for study, research, news reporting, criticism or review is permitted. Selected passages, tables or diagrams may be reproduced for such purposes provided acknowledgment of the source is included. Major extracts or the entire document may not be reproduced by any process without the written permission of the Executive Secretary, IOTC.

The Indian Ocean Tuna Commission has exercised due care and skill in the preparation and compilation of the information and data set out in this publication. Notwithstanding, the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission, employees and advisers disclaim all liability, including liability for negligence, for any loss, damage, injury, expense or cost incurred by any person as a result of accessing, using or relying upon any of the information or data set out in this publication to the maximum extent permitted by law.

Contact details:

Indian Ocean Tuna Commission PO Box 1011 Victoria, Mahé, Seychelles Email: <u>iotc-secretariat@fao.org</u> Website: <u>http://www.iotc.org</u>

#### ACRONYMS

ABNJ	Areas Beyond National Jurisdiction
CLAV	Consolidated List of Active Vessels
CMM	Conservation and Management Measure (of the IOTC; Resolutions and Recommendations)
CNCP	Cooperating Non-Contracting Parties
CoC	Compliance Committee, of the IOTC
CPCs	Contracting Parties and Cooperating non-Contracting Parties
CSM	Compliance Support Mission
FAO	Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations
ICRU	Improved Cost Recovery Uplift
IOTC	Indian Ocean Tuna Commission
MPF	Meeting Participation Fund
MSE	Management Strategy Evaluation
PSC	Project Servicing Costs
SC	Scientific Committee of the IOTC
SCAF	Standing Committee on Administration and Finance, of the IOTC

#### HOW TO INTERPRET TERMINOLOGY CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT

The following report has been written using the following terms and associated definitions so as to remove ambiguity surrounding how particular paragraphs should be interpreted.

Level 1: From a subsidiary body of the Commission to the next level in the structure of the Commission: RECOMMENDED, RECOMMENDATION: Any conclusion or request for an action to be undertaken, from a subsidiary body of the Commission (Committee or Working Party), which is to be formally provided to the next level in the structure of the Commission for its consideration/endorsement (e.g. from a Working Party to the Scientific Committee; from a Committee to the Commission). The intention is that the higher body will consider the recommended action for endorsement under its own mandate, if the subsidiary body does not already have the required mandate. Ideally this should be task specific and contain a timeframe for completion.

# Level 2: From a subsidiary body of the Commission to a CPC, the IOTC Secretariat, or other body (not the Commission) to carry out a specified task:

**REQUESTED**: This term should only be used by a subsidiary body of the Commission if it does not wish to have the request formally adopted/endorsed by the next level in the structure of the Commission. For example, if a Committee wishes to seek additional input from a CPC on a particular topic, but does not wish to formalise the request beyond the mandate of the Committee, it may request that a set action be undertaken. Ideally this should be task specific and contain a timeframe for the completion.

#### *Level 3: General terms to be used for consistency:*

**AGREED**: Any point of discussion from a meeting which the IOTC body considers to be an agreed course of action covered by its mandate, which has not already been dealt with under Level 1 or level 2 above; a general point of agreement among delegations/participants of a meeting which does not need to be considered/adopted by the next level in the Commission's structure.

**NOTED/NOTING**: Any point of discussion from a meeting which the IOTC body considers to be important enough to record in a meeting report for future reference.

**Any other term:** Any other term may be used in addition to the Level 3 terms to highlight to the reader of and IOTC report, the importance of the relevant paragraph. However, other terms used are considered for explanatory/informational purposes only and shall have no higher rating within the reporting terminology hierarchy than Level 3, described above (e.g. **CONSIDERED**; **URGED**; **ACKNOWLEDGED**).

### Table of contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS	4
Executive summary	5
OPENING OF THE SESSION	7
1. CREDENTIALS AND ADMISSION OF OBSERVERS	7
2. Adoption of the Agenda	7
3. DRAFT RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE IOTC WORKING CAPITAL FUND	7
4. PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE IOTC HEADQUARTERS AGREEMENT	7
5. REPORT OF THE IOTC SECRETARIAT	7
5.1 Report on 2022	
5.2 Update on requests made by the SCAF in 2022	7
6. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	8
6.1 Contributions Outstanding	
6.2 IOTC Meeting Participation Fund	
6.3 Financial statement: Fiscal year 2022	
6.4 Mid-term financial report 2023	
7. PROGRAMME OF WORK AND BUDGET ESTIMATES FOR 2024 AND TENTATIVELY FOR 2025	10
8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS	11
9. Adoption of the report	11
Appendix 1 Agenda for 20th Session Standing Committee on Administration and Finance	
Appendix 2 List of Documents	
Appendix 3 List of Participants	
Appendix 4 Draft Rules of Procedure for the operation of the IOTC Working Capital Fund	
Appendix 5 Draft annex of the IOTC HQ Agreement	
Appendix 6 Revised operational budget	
Appendix 7 Proposed budget for 2024 and indicative budget for 2025 (in US\$)	
Appendix 8 Scale of Contributions for 2024 (in US\$)	23

#### **Executive summary**

The 20<sup>th</sup> Session of the Standing Committee on Administration and Finance (SCAF) of the Indian Ocean Tuna Commission (IOTC) was held in a hybrid format, with delegations present physically in the meeting room, and other participants attending by videoconference, on 3 May 2022. Credentials were received from 26 Contracting Parties (Members) and 5 Observers. The meeting was Chaired by the SCAF Chairperson, Dr Hussain Sinan (Maldives).

#### The following requests were made by the SCAF.

- 1. Pakistan informed the SCAF that there is a potential error in the outstanding amount of its membership contribution. The SCAF **REQUESTED** that the Secretariat work with Pakistan and FAO to rectify this ongoing issue. (para 16)
- 2. Madagascar informed the SCAF that it made several payments in 2022; however, one of the payments apparently has not been received. The SCAF **REQUESTED** that the Secretariat work with Madagascar to clarify this matter. (para 21)
- 3. The SCAF **REQUESTED** the Executive Secretary to contact Eritrea and other ex-Members with a view to settling their outstanding contributions. (para 23)
- 4. The SCAF **REQUESTED** the Secretariat to provide a document describing the process for invoicing and receiving contributions to SCAF21, given such information could provide solutions to the current issues being experienced by Members with payments. (para 25)
- 5. The SCAF **NOTED** with concern the significant increased budget lines determined by FAO rules i.e the FAO entitlement fund, FAO servicing costs, and beyond control of the IOTC, and **REQUESTED** that the Commission consider resuming the discussion on leaving FAO. (para 52)

#### The SCAF made the following recommendations to the Commission.

- The SCAF NOTED paper IOTC-2023-SCAF20-10 that provided a draft Rules of Procedure for the operation of the IOTC Working Capital Fund drafted by a small working group of Members. After making some amendments, the SCAF RECOMMENDED a draft Rules of Procedure and the subsequent amendment to IOTC Financial Regulation IV(5) to the Commission for its consideration and approval (<u>Appendix 4</u>).(para 7)
- The SCAF NOTED paper IOTC-2023-SCAF20-09 that proposed amendments to the annex of the IOTC HQ Agreement. After making some further amendments, the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** a draft annex of the IOTC HQ Agreement to the Commission for its consideration and approval (Appendix 5). The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** the removal of the additional contribution made by Seychelles to the annual IOTC budget under the HQ Agreement. (para 8)
- 3. In addition to making an oral statement, the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** Members in arrears of their contributions to submit a written repayment plan that will be included in the Contributions Outstanding document that the Secretariat provides to the SCAF. Such a submission should be sent (as an information document) to the Secretariat at least 15 days before the annual SCAF meeting. (para 24)
- 4. The SCAF also NOTED that due to the expected increased demand and higher travel costs in 2023 that the funds available in the MPF for the remainder of 2023 may not be sufficient to cover demand and RECOMMENDED the use the Working Capital Fund for MPF purposes on an exceptional basis, up to a total expenditure of \$290,000 in 2023. (para31)
- 5. The SCAF NOTED that the 2024 MPF budget may not be sufficient to meet the expected increased demand and higher travel costs and guidance was requested from the SCAF on how to manage the fund. The SCAF RECOMMENDED the use of up to \$40,000 of the Working Capital Fund for MPF purposes on an exceptional basis, should the MPF require additional funds in 2024. (para 32)
- The SCAF RECOMMENDED to the Commission that, on an exceptional basis, and exclusively for one year, the current 75%:25% allocation of the MPF to science and non-science meetings (Rule XVI.5: of the IOTC Rules of Procedure) not be applied in 2024 without jeopardising CPC attendance to scientific meetings. (para 33)

- 7. The SCAF NOTED that the current Rules of Procedure for the administration of the IOTC Meeting Participation Fund (Appendix VIII of the IOTC RoP) have become difficult to operationalise. The SCAF RECOMMENDED that a small working group be convened to review the efficacy of the rules of procedure for the administration of the IOTC MPF (Appendix VIII of the IOTC Rules of Procedure) and the MPF budget and report the outcomes of the review to SCAF21. The review is to also include an assessment of the current 75%:25% allocation of the MPF to science and non-science meetings. While the Membership of the SWG would be open to all Members, the SCAF NOTED the early intention of the European Union, Kenya and Maldives to join this group. (para 34)
- 8. The SCAF **NOTED** that that an estimated \$40,000 may be required for interpretation services in 2023 and **RECOMMENDED** that should the interpretation budget require additional funds in 2023, that these funds will be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, from the Working Capital Fund. (para 43)
- 9. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** a cap of \$700,000 be applied to the Employer FAO entitlement fund budget line and further **RECOMMENDED**, on an exceptional basis, that any additional funds required for this line be taken from the Working Capital Fund. (para 48)
- 10. The SCAF **NOTED** that the 2024 budget is estimated with the assumption that meetings will be hosted by Members and therefore will be of minimal cost to the Commission. However, as there are fewer Members offering to host IOTC meetings since the pandemic, additional funds may be required in the 2024 Meetings budget line to deliver these meetings. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that any additional funds required for the Secretariat to host meetings be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, on an exceptional basis, from the Working Capital Fund. (para 49)
- 11. The SCAF **NOTED** that the IOTC website is required to be located on the FAO web platform and, a prototype IOTC website is expected to be built in 2023 and the transfer of IOTC's static web materials to the new website started. Since no contingency budget has been proposed for additional work to migrate IOTC's systems and website to FAO in 2024 the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that any additional required funds be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, on an exceptional basis, from the Working Capital Fund, in accordance with its rules of procedure. (para 50)
- 12. The SCAF **ELECTED** Mr Muhammad Farhan Khan (Pakistan) as SCAF Chairperson for the next biennium and **RECOMMENDED** that his appointment be confirmed by the Commission. (para 53)
- 13. The SCAF **ELECTED** Dr Muhammed Tanvir Hossain Chowdhury (Bangladesh) as SCAF Vice-Chairperson for the next biennium and **RECOMMENDED** that his appointment be confirmed by the Commission. (para 54)

#### On the Programme of Work and Budget Estimates for 2023 and tentatively for 2024

14. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that the Commission adopt the Programme of Work and Budget and the scheme of contributions for 2024 and 2025 (indicative) as outlined in Appendix 7 and Appendix 8, respectively, while NOTING that the Program of Work for the IOTC Secretariat is based on the assumption that the nature and extent of the activities undertaken by the IOTC Secretariat will remain within the current scope. Any new activities agreed to during the 27th Session of the Commission (S27) that have budgetary consequences, will require an amendment of the figures. (para 51)

#### **Opening of the Session**

- 1. The meeting was opened and chaired by the Standing Committee on Administration and Finance (SCAF) Chairperson, Dr Hussain Sinan (Maldives).
- 2. The 20th Session of the SCAF was held in a hybrid format, with delegations present physically in the meeting room, and other participants attending by videoconference.

#### **1.** Credentials and Admission of observers

- 3. Letters of Credentials were received from 26 Contracting Parties. China and India participated virtually.
- 4. Pursuant to Article VII of the Agreement establishing the IOTC and Rule XIV of the IOTC Rules of Procedure, the Commission admitted the following observers:

Members and Associate Members of the FAO that are not Members of the Commission.

• United States of America

Non-governmental organizations having special competence in the field of activity of the Commission.

- International Seafood Sustainability Foundation
- PEW Charitable Trusts
- Sustainable Fisheries and Communities Trusts
- World Wide Fund For Nature
- 5. The list of participants, as listed in the letters of credentials, is provided in <u>Appendix 1</u>.

#### 2. Adoption of the Agenda

6. The SCAF **ADOPTED** the Agenda provided in <u>Appendix 2</u>. The documents presented to the SCAF are listed in <u>Appendix 3</u>.

#### 3. Draft Rules of Procedure for the IOTC Working Capital Fund

7. The SCAF NOTED paper IOTC-2023-SCAF20-10 that provided a draft Rules of Procedure for the operation of the IOTC Working Capital Fund drafted by a small working group of Members. After making some amendments, the SCAF RECOMMENDED a draft Rules of Procedure and the subsequent amendment to IOTC Financial Regulation IV(5) to the Commission for its consideration and approval (<u>Appendix 4</u>).

#### 4. Proposal to Amend the IOTC Headquarters Agreement

8. The SCAF **NOTED** paper IOTC-2023-SCAF20-09 that proposed amendments to the annex of the IOTC HQ Agreement. After making some further amendments, the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** a draft annex of the IOTC HQ Agreement to the Commission for its consideration and approval (<u>Appendix 5</u>). The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** the removal of the additional contribution made by Seychelles to the annual IOTC budget under the HQ Agreement.

#### 5. Report of the IOTC Secretariat

#### 5.1 Report on 2022

9. The SCAF **NOTED** document IOTC–2023–SCAF20–02 which outlined the activities of the Secretariat in 2022 that covered its support to meetings; support to scientific and compliance activities; communications; information technology; and administration.

#### 5.2 Update on requests made by the SCAF in 2022

10. The SCAF **NOTED** paper IOTC–2023–SCAF20–03 which provided the SCAF with information on the progress made during the inter-sessional period on the requests for action made at its 19th Session in 2022.

#### 6. Financial Statements

#### 6.1 Contributions Outstanding

- 11. The SCAF **NOTED** the information presented in document IOTC-2023-SCAF20-05 on the contributions outstanding as of 31 December 2022.
- 12. The SCAF **NOTED** the cumulative total of outstanding contribution payments has decreased by around 32%, from \$3,984,835 as of 31 December 2021 to \$2,711,107 as of 31 December 2022.
- 13. The SCAF **NOTED** that the I.R. of Iran was responsible for around 48% of the total outstanding contributions as of December 2021. However, a payment of US\$ 1,913,500 was received from Iran in 2022. The payment was made possible by the special effort by Ministry of Jahad-e-Agriculture in Iran, in collaboration with the Secretariat and the FAO Finance Unit to find a suitable solution for the payment through UN channels. Iran informed the SCAF that it faces ongoing challenges to transfer contributions in the future. The SCAF **THANKED** Iran for its commitment to pay it contributions and to find a solution for making these payments going forward.
- 14. The SCAF **NOTED** that as of 31 December 2022, 13 Members had outstanding contributions to a total value of \$2,415,801; and the total outstanding contributions of ex-members was \$295,306.
- 15. The SCAF **NOTED** that no contributions were received from eight Members in 2022, namely Bangladesh, Comoros, Eritrea, Korea, Philippines, Sri Lanka, Sudan and Yemen. The SCAF also **NOTED** that partial contributions were received from Iran, Madagascar, Mozambique, Pakistan and Somalia, but these did not cover the full amount due.
- 16. Pakistan informed the SCAF that there is a potential error in the outstanding amount of its membership contribution. The SCAF **REQUESTED** that the Secretariat work with Pakistan and FAO to rectify this ongoing issue.
- 17. Mozambique informed the SCAF that it has a plan in place to pay its outstanding contributions. Notwithstanding the challenges being faced by Mozambique, a payment equivalent to two years contributions is progressing through the Central Bank and can be expected to be paid by June 2023.
- 18. Bangladesh informed the SCAF that it is aware of its outstanding contributions and will endeavour to make payment as soon as possible.
- 19. Sri Lanka informed the SCAF that, as per the current Economic Stabilization Policies, the payment in 2023 is in the process for final approval by Cabinet.
- 20. Comoros informed the SCAF that it is aware of its outstanding contributions, and despite the challenges it faces, it remains committed to making payments to the extent possible.
- 21. Madagascar informed the SCAF that it made several payments in 2022; however, one of the payments apparently has not been received. The SCAF **REQUESTED** that the Secretariat work with Madagascar to clarify this matter.
- 22. Korea informed the SCAF that it did not make a payment in 2022; however, this payment as well as the 2023 contributions payment have now been made.
- 23. The SCAF **REQUESTED** the Executive Secretary to contact Eritrea and other ex-Members with a view to settling their outstanding contributions.
- 24. In addition to making an oral statement, the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** Members in arrears of their contributions to submit a written repayment plan that will be included in the Contributions Outstanding document that the Secretariat provides to the SCAF. Such a submission should be sent (as an information document) to the Secretariat at least 15 days before the annual SCAF meeting.
- 25. The SCAF **REQUESTED** the Secretariat to provide a document describing the process for invoicing and receiving contributions to SCAF21, given such information could provide solutions to the current issues being experienced by Members with payments.
- 26. The SCAF **NOTED** that as of 31 December 2022, the total of outstanding contributions for Eritrea, Sudan and Yemen was \$1,423,587, equivalent to almost 52% of the total outstanding contributions. If the history of non-

payment of contributions from Sudan and Yemen continues into the future (Eritrea will have withdrawn from the Commission in 2024), it means that every year, the annual budget could effectively be reduced by around \$74,000.

#### 6.2 IOTC Meeting Participation Fund

- 27. The SCAF **NOTED** document IOTC–2023–SCAF20–06 which provides past and present details of the IOTC Meeting Participation Fund (MPF).
- 28. The SCAF **ACKNOWLEDGED** the extra contribution to the MPF received from China (\$18,000) in 2022.
- 29. The SCAF **NOTED** that the total amount available in the MPF in 2022 was \$357,768 and that the total expenditures for the MPF in 2022 amounted to \$288,671 and this covered the costs of 111 participants.
- 30. The SCAF RECALLED the expectation the Commission had in 2022 that the balance of the MPF was going to be in excess of \$100,000, and consequently it set the 2023 MPF budget at \$0, with a contingency to allow up to \$150,000 of Working Capital Funds to be used to augment the MPF should additional funds be necessary. The SCAF NOTED the balance of the MPF at the end of 2022 was \$69,097 and that the amount available to the MPF for 2023 was \$219,097 compared to the normal annual budget of \$250,000.
- 31. The SCAF also **NOTED** that due to the expected increased demand and higher travel costs in 2023 that the funds available in the MPF for the remainder of 2023 may not be sufficient to cover demand and **RECOMMENDED** the use the Working Capital Fund for MPF purposes on an exceptional basis, up to a total expenditure of \$290,000 in 2023.
- 32. The SCAF **NOTED** that the 2024 MPF budget may not be sufficient to meet the expected increased demand and higher travel costs and guidance was requested from the SCAF on how to manage the fund. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** the use of up to \$40,000 of the Working Capital Fund for MPF purposes on an exceptional basis, should the MPF require additional funds in 2024.
- 33. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** to the Commission that, on an exceptional basis, and exclusively for one year, the current 75%:25% allocation of the MPF to science and non-science meetings (Rule XVI.5: of the IOTC Rules of Procedure) not be applied in 2024 without jeopardising CPC attendance to scientific meetings.
- 34. The SCAF **NOTED** that the current Rules of Procedure for the administration of the IOTC Meeting Participation Fund (Appendix VIII of the IOTC RoP) have become difficult to operationalise. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that a small working group be convened to review the efficacy of the rules of procedure for the administration of the IOTC MPF (Appendix VIII of the IOTC Rules of Procedure) and the MPF budget and report the outcomes of the review to SCAF21. The review is to also include an assessment of the current 75%:25% allocation of the MPF to science and non-science meetings. While the Membership of the SWG would be open to all Members, the SCAF **NOTED** the early intention of the European Union, Kenya and Maldives to join this group.

#### 6.3 Financial statement: Fiscal year 2022

- 35. The SCAF **NOTED** paper IOTC–2023–SCAF20–04 which provided the financial statement for the Commission for the period 1 January to 31 December 2022.
- 36. The SCAF **NOTED** the total of contributions due in 2022 for the 2022 budget was (US)\$4,071,765, and as of 31 December 2022, a total of \$5,345,493 had been received. This amounted to a surplus of \$1,273,728. The SCAF **NOTED** that the surplus was a result of the payment of arrears by Iran and acknowledged that without the payment from Iran there would have been a shortfall between contributions due and contributions received of \$639,772.
- 37. The SCAF **NOTED** that out of the total budget of \$4,071,765 the Commission spent \$3,790,022. The level of under expenditure from the budget amounted to a total of \$281,744.
- 38. The SCAF **NOTED** that the unspent budget from 2022 was allocated to the Working Capital Fund and the balance of the fund as of 31 December 2022 was \$5,570,632.
- 39. The SCAF **NOTED** that extra-budgetary funds continue to be an important part of the overall budget and **THANKED** China for providing extra-budgetary funds in 2022 (\$18,000).

40. The SCAF **NOTED** that \$591,152 were received in contributions for the Regional Observer Programme and that the ROP had a balance of \$145,537, as of 31 December 2022.

#### 6.4 Mid-term financial report 2023

- 41. The SCAF **NOTED** the mid-term financial report 2023 provided in document IOTC-2023-SCAF20-07\_Rev1 which informed the SCAF that the Secretariat had received \$638,117 from the European Union as the first tranche of a voluntary contribution of 801.507 € dedicated to cover the funding of a new project in 2023-24. The multi-year project will support a range of scientific and compliance related activities that have been prioritized by the Commission through its technical bodies; the Secretariat has received a voluntary contribution of GBP 50,000 from the United Kingdom to be used for activities related to data improvement and data analysis; and that the second vehicle used by the Secretariat will be retired in 2023 in accordance with FAO procedures.
- 42. The SCAF **NOTED** that it is likely that the WCF will need to be used in 2023 to augment meeting costs, as approved by the Commission in 2022.
- 43. The SCAF **NOTED** that that an estimated \$40,000 may be required for interpretation services in 2023 and **RECOMMENDED** that should the interpretation budget require additional funds in 2023, that these funds will be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, from the Working Capital Fund.

#### 7. Programme of Work and Budget Estimates for 2024 and tentatively for 2025

- 44. The SCAF **NOTED** document IOTC–2023–SCAF20–08\_Rev1 which outlined the budget estimates for the IOTC Secretariat's Program of Work for the financial period 1 January to 31 December 2024, together with indicative figures for the 2025 financial period.
- 45. The SCAF **NOTED** that the overall budget amount proposed for the Administrative Budget for 2024 was based on IOTC's normal operations without any additional instructions from the forthcoming Commission meeting.
- 46. The SCAF **NOTED** the proposed 2024 budget represented a 17% increase from the corresponding 2023 budget. The SCAF **DISCUSSED** in detail the proposed 2024 budget before **AGREEING** on a revised budget that represents a 7% increase from the corresponding budget adopted in 2023.
- 47. The revised operational budget for 2024 is provided in <u>Appendix 6</u>.
- 48. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** a cap of \$700,000 be applied to the Employer FAO entitlement fund budget line and further **RECOMMENDED**, on an exceptional basis, that any additional funds required for this line be taken from the Working Capital Fund.
- 49. The SCAF **NOTED** that the 2024 budget is estimated with the assumption that meetings will be hosted by Members and therefore will be of minimal cost to the Commission. However, as there are fewer Members offering to host IOTC meetings since the pandemic, additional funds may be required in the 2024 Meetings budget line to deliver these meetings. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that any additional funds required for the Secretariat to host meetings be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, on an exceptional basis, from the Working Capital Fund.
- 50. The SCAF **NOTED** that the IOTC website is required to be located on the FAO web platform and, a prototype IOTC website is expected to be built in 2023 and the transfer of IOTC's static web materials to the new website started. Since no contingency budget has been proposed for additional work to migrate IOTC's systems and website to FAO in 2024 the SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that any additional required funds be first taken from savings in other budget lines, then, only if required, on an exceptional basis, from the Working Capital Fund, in accordance with its rules of procedure.
- 51. The SCAF **RECOMMENDED** that the Commission adopt the Programme of Work and Budget and the scheme of contributions for 2024 and 2025 (indicative) as outlined in <u>Appendix 7</u> and <u>Appendix 8</u>, respectively, while **NOTING** that the Program of Work for the IOTC Secretariat is based on the assumption that the nature and extent of the activities undertaken by the IOTC Secretariat will remain within the current scope. Any new activities agreed to during the 27th Session of the Commission (S27) that have budgetary consequences, will require an amendment of the figures.

52. The SCAF **NOTED** with concern the significant increased budget lines determined by FAO rules i.e the FAO entitlement fund, FAO servicing costs, and beyond control of the IOTC, and **REQUESTED** that the Commission consider resuming the discussion on leaving FAO.

#### 8. Any Other Business

- 53. The SCAF **ELECTED** Mr Muhammad Farhan Khan (Pakistan) as SCAF Chairperson for the next biennium and **RECOMMENDED** that his appointment be confirmed by the Commission.
- 54. The SCAF **ELECTED** Dr Muhammed Tanvir Hossain Chowdhury (Bangladesh) as SCAF Vice-Chairperson for the next biennium and **RECOMMENDED** that his appointment be confirmed by the Commission.
- 55. The SCAF **THANKED** the outgoing Chairperson Dr Hussain Sinan (Maldives) for his leadership over the past four years.

#### 9. Adoption of the report

56. The report of the 20<sup>th</sup> Session of the IOTC Standing Committee on Administration and Finance (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-R) was **ADOPTED** on 4 May 2023.

#### APPENDIX 1

#### AGENDA FOR 20TH SESSION STANDING COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

#### **OPENING OF THE MEETING**

- 1. LETTERS OF CREDENTIALS & ADMISSION OF OBSERVERS
- 2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA
- 3. DRAFT RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE IOTC WORKING CAPITAL FUND (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-10)
- 4. PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE IOTC HEADQUARTERS AGREEMENT (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-09)
- 5. REPORT OF THE SECRETARIAT
  - 5.1 Report of the Secretariat on 2022 (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-02)
  - 5.2 Update on the requests made by the SCAF in 2022 (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-03)

#### 6. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- 6.1 Contributions Outstanding (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-04)
- 6.2 IOTC Meeting Participation Fund (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-05)
- 6.3 Financial Statement: Fiscal Year 2021 (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-06)

6.4 Mid-term financial report 2023 (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-07I)

- 7. PROGRAMME OF WORK AND BUDGET ESTIMATES FOR 2024 AND TENTATIVELY FOR 2025 Programme of work and budget (IOTC-2023-SCAF20-08)
- 8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
- 9. ADOPTION OF THE REPORT OF SCAF20 (4 May)

# APPENDIX 2 LIST OF DOCUMENTS

Documents are available on the IOTC SCAF20 meeting page [click here]

Document	Title
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-01b	Draft agenda for SCAF20
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-02	Report of the IOTC Secretariat on the year 2022
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-03	Progress on requests for action made by the SCAF in 2022
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-04	Contributons Outstanding
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-05	IOTC Meeting Participation Fund
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-06	Financial Statement for 2022
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-07-Rev1	Mid-Term Financial report 2023
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-08-Rev1	Provisional Program of work and budget for 2024 (and Indicative Budget for 2025)
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-09	Proposal to Amend the IOTC Headquarters Agreement
IOTC-2023-SCAF20-10	Draft Rules of Procedure for the IOTC Working Capital Fund

#### APPENDIX 3 LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

#### benoit.marcoux@ec.europa.eu

Ms Juliette Haziza juliette.haziza@agriculture.gouv.fr

FRANCE(OT) Head Of Delegation Ms Lucie Orozco Secretariat d'Etat charge de la mer <u>lucie.orozco@mer.gouv.fr</u>

INDIA Advisor(s) Ms Prathibha Rohit Department of Fisheries <u>prathibharohit@gmail.com</u>

INDONESIA Head Of Delegation Ms Putuh Suadela Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries <u>putuhsuadela@gmail.com</u>

Alternate Ms Riana Handayani Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries <u>daya139@yahoo.co.id</u>

Mr Indra Jaya Head of National Committee on Fish Stock Assessment indrajaya123@gmail.com

Mr Muhammad Anas Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries daya139@yahoo.co.id

Mr Hendri Kurniawan Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries of the <u>hendrikur16@gmail.com</u>

Mr Alza Rendian Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries <u>alzarendian@gmail.com</u>

Ms Mumpuni Cyntia Pratiwi Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries <u>mumpuni.cpratiwi@gmail.com</u>

Ms Saraswati Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries <u>cacasaras@gmail.com</u>

Ms Ririk Sulitstyaningsih National Research and Innovation Agency <u>rk.sulistyaningsih11@gmail.com</u>

Mr Hary Christijanto Ministry of Marine Affairs and Fisheries of the Republic of Indonesia <u>hchristijanto@yahoo.com</u>

IRAN Head Of Delegation Mr Fariborz Rajaei Iran Fisheries Organization rajaeif@gmail.com

JAPAN Head Of Delegation Mr Hiroyuki Morita International Affairs Division hiroyuki morita970@maff.go.jp

Page 14 of 23

Alternate Ms Maiko Nakasu International Affairs Division maiko nakasu100@maff.go.jp

KENYA Alternate Mr Daniel Mungai State Department for Blue Economy and Fisheries <u>mungai.daniel.n@gmail.com</u>

Advisor(s) Ms Lucy Obungu State Department for Blue Economy and Fisheries <u>lucyobungu@yahoo.com</u>

Mr Stephen Ndegwa State Department for Blue Economy and Fisheries <u>ndegwafish@yahoo.com</u>

Mr Leonard Bett State Department for Blue Economy and Fisheries lennybettbirir@gmail.com

KOREA Head Of Delegation Ms Soobin Shim Ministry of Oceans and Fisheries sbin8shim@korea.kr

Alternate Mr Taehoon Won Ministry of Oceans and Fisheries th1608@korea.kr

Advisor Ms. Kim Soomin Korea Overseas Fisheries Cooperation Center soominkim@kofci.org

MADAGASCAR Head of Delegation Mr Marolova Antoine Rasolomampionona Ministère de la pêche et de l'économie Bleue lovastat.mrhp@gmail.com

Ms Jackee Speaka British Ministère de la pêche et de l'économie Bleue speakabritish@gmail.com

MALAYSIA Head of Delegation Ms Nor Azlin Mokhtar Department of Fisheries nor azlin@dof.gov.my

MALDIVES Head Of Delegation Ms Maleeha Haleem Ministry of Fisheries, Marine Resources and Agriculture maleeha.haleem@fishagri.gov.mv

Alternate Ms Munshidha Ibrahim Ministry of Fisheries, Marine Resources and Agriculture

CHAIRPERSON

Dr Hussain Sinan Ministry of Fisheries, Marine Resources and Agriculture <u>hsinan@gmail.com</u>

AUSTRALIA

Head Of Delegation Mr Neil Hughes Director, Regional Fisheries Section Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry Neil.Hughes@aff.gov.au

Alternate(s) Mr Viv Fernandes Senior Manager, International Compliance Policy Australian Fisheries Management Authority viv.fernandes@afma.gov.au

BANGLADESH Head Of Delegation Dr Muhammed Tanvir Hossain Chowdhury Department of Fisheries tanvir h1998@yahoo.com

CHINA Alternate Mr Xiaobing Liu Shanghai Ocean University xiaobing.liu@hotmail.com

Advisor(s) Ms Shiyu Yang Shanghai Ocean University yangshiyu shou@163.com

Ms Qiuning Li China Overseas Fisheries Association liquining@cofa.net.cn

COMOROS Head Of Delegation Mr Said Boina Direction Générale des Ressources Halieutiques dalaili@live.fr

Advisor(s) Mr Kamal Mohamed Direction Générale des Ressources Halieutiques <u>kamalmohamed4@gmail.com</u>

EUROPEAN UNION Head Of Delegation Mr Marco Valletta Directorate-General for Maritime Affairs and Fisheries marco.valletta@ec.europa.eu

Alternate Ms Laura Marot Directorate-General for Maritime Affairs and Fisheries <u>laura.marot@ec.europa.eu</u>

Advisor(s) Mr Benoit Marcoux Directorate-General for Maritime Affairs and Fisheries

#### munshidha.ibrahim@fishagri.gov.mv

MAURITIUS Head of Delegation Ms Meera Koonjul Ministry of Blue Economy Marine Resources, Fisheries and Shipping mkoonjul@govmu.org

Alternate Ms Clivy Lim Shung Ministry of Blue Economy Marine Resources, Fisheries and Shipping <u>clivilim@yahoo.com</u>

Ms Devika Moosoohur Ministry of Blue Economy Marine Resources, Fisheries and Shipping dmoosoohur@govmu.org

Ms Hanista Jhumun Foolheea Ministry of Blue Economy Marine Resources, Fisheries and Shipping hfoolheea@govmu.org

MOZAMBIQUE Head of Delegation Mr Cassamo Junior Ministry of the Sea, Inland Waters and Fisheries cassamo.hassane@gmail.com

Alternate Mr Avelino Munwane Ministry of the Sea, Inland Waters and Fisheries avelinomunwane@gmail.com

Mr Rui Mutombene Ministry of the Sea, Inland Waters and Fisheries ruimutombene@gmail.com

OMAN Head of Delegation Mr Al-Muatasim Al Habisi Ministry of Agricultural Wealth and Water Resources muatasim4@hotmail.com

Mr Tariq Al Alawi Ministry of Agricultural Wealth and Water Resources ta alalawi 211@hotmail.com

Mr Jose Ramon Gallardo Ministry of Agricultural Wealth and Water Resources <u>ramon@g-gallardolegal.eu</u>

PAKISTAN Alternate Mr Muhammad Farhan Khan Ministry of Maritime Affairs farhankhan704@gmail.com

Advisor(s) Mr Ahmed Jamshed Ministry of Maritime Affairs aj.ahmedjamshed@gmail.com

PHILIPPINES Head Of Delegation Ms Rosario SegundlnaGaerlan Bureau of Fisheries rosariosegundinagaerlan@yahoo.com Alternate Ms Jennifer G.Viron Senior Fishing Regulations Officer Bureau of Fisheries jennyviron@bfar.da.gov.ph

Mr Benjamin Tabios, Jr. Bureau of Fisheries <u>benjotabios@gmail.com</u>

SEYCHELLES Head of Delegation Mr Roy Clarisse Ministry of Fisheries and Blue Economy rclarisse@gov.sc

Alternate Mr Vincent Lucas Seychelles Fishing Authority vlucas@sfa.sc

Advisor(s) Ms Karyss Auguste Seychelles Fishing Authority kauguste@sfa.sc

SOUTH AFRICA Head of Delegation Mr Qayiso Mketsu Department of Forestry, Fisheries and the Environment gaiso.mketsu@gmail.com

Advisor(s) Mr David Wilson Department of Forestry, Fisheries and the Environment <u>davetroywilson@gmail.com</u>

SRI LANKA Head of Delegation Ms Kalyani Hewapathirana Department of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources hewakal2012@gmail.com

TANZANIA Alternate Mr Emmanuel A Sweke Deep Sea Fisheries Authority emmanuel.sweke@dsfa.go.tz

Advisor(s) Mr Saleh A S. Yahya Deep Sea Fisheries Authority saleh.yahya@dsfa.go.tz

Ms Asha A Khatib Deep Sea Fisheries Authority <u>asha.khatib@dsfa.go.tz</u>

Mr Juma O. Haji Deep Sea Fisheries Authority juma.haji@dsfa.go.tz

THAILAND Head Of Delegation Ms Praulai Nootmorn Department of Fisheries nootmorn@yahoo.com

Alternate Ms Chonticha Kumyoo Department of Fisheries chonticha.dof@gmail.com

Page 15 of 23

Advisor(s) Ms Jaruwan Songphatkaew Department of Fisheries conyakkee@gmail.com

Ms Thanyalak Ratanadilok Na Phuket Department of Fisheries <u>trthanya@gmail.com</u>

UNITED KINGDOM Head of Delegation Mr Marc Owen Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs marc.owen@defra.gov.uk

Alternate Mr Luke Townley Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs Luke.Townley@defra.gov.uk

Advisor(s) Ms Scarlett Milner-Stopps Department of Fisheries Scarlett.Milner-Stopps@defra.gov.uk

Mr Chris Mees Mrag c.mees@mrag.co.uk

Mr James Moir Clark Mrag J.Clark@mrag.co.uk

OBSERVERS SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES AND COMMUNITIES TRUST(SFACT) Mr John Burton john.burton@sfact.org

IOTC SECRETARIAT Mr Chris O'Brien Chris.Obrien@fao.org

Mr Gerard Domingue Gerard.Domingue@fao.org

Ms Mirose Govinden Mirose.Govinden@fao.org

Ms Claudette Matombe <u>Claudette.Matombe@fao.org</u>

Mr Howard Whalley <u>Howard.Whalley@fao.org</u>

INTERPRETERS Ms Sylvia Amisi sylviaamisi@yahoo.com

Mr Weru Macharia werum6@gmail.com

Ms Evelyn Wangechi Ndirangu-Ngari wangecieve@gmail.com

Mr Ephrem Kamanzi ekamanzi@gmail.com

Mr Eloy Molinero letImolinero@yahoo.com

#### **APPENDIX 4**

#### DRAFT RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE OPERATION OF THE IOTC WORKING CAPITAL FUND

DRAFT Working Capital Fund Rules of Procedure

- 1. The Commission has established a Working Capital Fund (WCF) for the purpose of accommodating operating expenditures prior to the receipts of funds from members of the Commission under Regulation IV(5) of the IOTC Financial regulations.
- 2. Insofar as possible, the Commission shall, at a minimum, maintain the WCF at a level equivalent to the level of total annual staff costs contained in the current budget.
- 3. The WCF shall be replenished from surplus appropriations, savings from the annual budget, interest paid on the balance of WCF, receipt of arrears, and voluntary contributions explicitly devoted to it. If the WCF drops below the aforementioned minimum level, the Commission may consider including a contribution to the WCF in the budget of the next calendar year.
- 4. At each regular session, the Commission shall review the amount available in the WCF as part of the reporting procedures in Regulation V(5) of the IOTC Financial Regulations.
- 5. Members shall not interpret the funds in the WCF as a means of avoiding or reducing contributions or having contributions, once paid, returned to them.
- 6. Depending on the balance of the WCF, the WCF may be used, on an exceptional basis, to:
  - (i) pay for emergency expenses such as unforeseen, unavoidable, unpostponable, unbudgeted for and not otherwise absorbable intersessional expenses or emergencies.
  - (a) The Executive Secretary shall approve emergency expenditures up to a maximum of \$10,000 per budgetary year, subject to consideration and authorisation by both the Chairperson of the Commission and the Chairperson of SCAF. The IOTC Heads of Delegations will be immediately informed of each such expenditure.
  - (b) In the event that a proposed emergency use of the WCF exceeds \$10,000 per budgetary year, after consultation with the Chairperson of the Commission and the Chairperson of SCAF, the Executive Secretary shall seek agreement for the expenditure from the Members of the Commission via email to the respective HOD and ALT. If, within 3 working days hours of being notified, a Head of Delegation raises an objection to the proposed emergency use of the WCF, a meeting of the IOTC Heads of Delegations shall be convened immediately to consider and decide on the matter;
  - (ii) accommodate extraordinary but foreseeable large and one-off expenses to the operational budget as determined by the Commission at its Annual Session when adopting the budget for the next fiscal year;
  - (iii) cover any expenses in an amount that prevents the annual budget from exceeding an increase of 10%, beyond the control of the Commission, as determined by the Commission at its Annual Session.
  - (iv) Implement activities funded by a voluntary contribution that have been prioritized by the Commission and its subsidiary bodies.
- 7. Except as provided for in paragraph 6(i)(a) of these WCF Rules of Procedure, in accordance with Article XIII of the IOTC Agreement, the Commission should decide on each extraordinary use of the WCF, as defined in paragraph 6, by consensus of its Members. However, if, after every effort has been made, a consensus cannot be reached, the matter will be put to a vote and decided by the position of a two-thirds majority of the Members present and voting.

Proposed amendments to Regulation IV(5) of the IOTC Financial Regulations to include text that refers to the Rules of Procedure for the operation of the IOTC Working Capital Fund

#### **Current text of Regulation IV(5)**

The Commission shall establish a Working Capital Fund for the purpose of accommodating operating expenditures prior to the receipts of funds from members of the Commission. The source of this working capital fund shall be surplus appropriations accumulated over the years. The Commission shall consider establishing a rules of procedure for the operation of the working capital fund which will include a mechanism to fund the working capital fund if there are no surplus appropriations. The Contracting Parties shall not interpret the funds in the Working Capital Funds as a means of avoiding contributions.

#### Proposed text amendments to Regulation IV(5)

The Commission has established a Working Capital Fund for the purpose of accommodating operating expenditures prior to the receipts of funds from members of the Commission. The Contracting Parties shall not interpret the funds in the Working Capital Funds as a means of avoiding contributions. The Rules of Procedure for the operation of the Working Capital Fund are provided in Annex 2.

### APPENDIX 5 DRAFT ANNEX OF THE IOTC HQ AGREEMENT

#### ANNEX TO THE HEADQUARTERS AGREEMENT

Article 1, paragraph 1, of the Headquarters Agreement states that the Government of Seychelles shall make available for the exclusive use of IOTC, free of charge, the premises necessary for the performance of the functions of its headquarters.

Paragraph 2 of Article 1 points out that the offices and other facilities made available to IOTC for this purpose are described in the annex to the Headquarters Agreement.

As a consequence, the present annex to the Headquarters Agreement describes the offices offered to IOTC by the Government of Seychelles and lists the other facilities provided to IOTC by the Government.

The Government of Seychelles undertakes to:

- provide to IOTC for its exclusive use, modern offices commensurate with IOTC requirements and United Nations Minimum Operating Security Standards situated in Victoria or nearby; including a meeting room, a staff lunch room and secure parking;
- (ii) arrange for and bear the cost of any necessary safety features, maintenance (including daily cleaning) and repairs to the premises referred to in (i) above;
- (iii) install and provide electricity and water needed for the use of the office premises and bear the consumption costs;
- (iv) install data and telephone lines;
- (v) provide a vehicle for the exclusive use of IOTC, which will be replaced every five years;
- (vii) ensure permanent security of the premises of IOTC in line with United Nations Minimum Operating Security Standards.

# APPENDIX 6

REVISED	OPERATIONAL	BUDGET
---------	-------------	--------

Item Description	2024 (US\$)
Capacity Building	
Data compliance and support missions based on priority actions	40,000
Regional Workshop on CMM Implementation or use and management of e-Maris (to be subject to co-financing)	25,000
Compliance Capacity Building activities based on priority actions	0
Sub-Total US\$	65,000
Co-funding extra budgetary science and data grants	
Consultants / Service Providers budget line will be used as required for any new grants	0
Sub-Total US\$	0
Co-funding extra budgetary compliance grants	
Consultants / Service Providers budget line will be used as required for any new grants	0
Sub-Total US\$	0
Consultants/Service Providers	
Information technology consultant (NPP) - \$1 733 / month	20,800
TCAC Consultants (Chair & simulation expert)	60,000
Consultant – maintenance of compliance utilities and platforms (ePSM)	20,000
Compliance consultant - data inputting (NPP) - \$1 365 / month	16,380
Compliance legal assistance (consultant)	0

Prioritised activities supporting the work of the Scientific Committee: 1) Address the issues with the yellowfin tuna stock assessment identified as priorities by the yellowfin tuna peer review panel (February 2023) (\$80 000) 2) Development of shark research plans as requested by the Commission. (\$40 000) 3) Reproductive biology studies for billfish species (\$70 000) 4) Continuation of MSE for priority IOTC species (\$90 000)	280,000
Contingency for work proposed by the Commission	25,000
Sub-Total US\$	422,180
Duty Travel (Staff and Non-Staff)	
IOTC Staff Travel 2024 (Meetings and field activities, excluding logistics support)	100,000
External Experts (Science) 2024	45,000
Sub-Total US\$	145,000
Meetings	
Contingency Commission, CoC, SCAF, TCMP	WCF
Contingency for TCAC if hosted by IOTC (or travel for logistics support)	WCF
Contingency Scientific Committee and Working Parties if hosted directly by IOTC	WCF
Logistics support for meetings (travel and other related expenses)	84,000
Sub-Total US\$	84,000
Interpretation	
CoC, SCAF, TCMP, S28	70,000
TCAC (TBD) - 2 sessions	100,000
SC	50,000
Sub-Total US\$	220,000

Translation	
Translation - IOTC Consultants	105,000
Sub-Total US\$	105,000
Equipment	
IT equipment (network, hardware and accessories as needed)	15,000
Office furniture and facilities	5,000
Sub-Total US\$	20,000
General Operating Expenses	
Web Hosting, Email hosting, website admin, software and licenses	10,000
Cloud hosting eMaris and ePSM	6,000
Subscriptions (eg. journals and newspapers)	1,100
Office Tel and mobile phones - \$4,000 / yr; Data Lines (internet) - \$42,000 / yr	46,000
Postal & Pouch - \$300 /yr + distribution of printed materials \$2000 /yr	2,300
Vehicle Insurance and Vehicle Maintenance (Insurance 850/yr, Maint \$1,000 / yr; Vehicle Petrol/Diesel - \$1,200 / yr; Vehicle Cleaning - \$400 / yr)-	3,450
Cleaning of Premises	7,000
Maintenance of photocopiers and printers, including toners	1,500
Office Supplies and miscellaneous (Stationery; Kitchen; Bathroom; Water etc.)	6,000
Sub-Total US\$	83,350
Contingencies	
As required by the Financial Regulations	10,000
Operating Expenditures Total US\$	1,154,530

# APPENDIX 7 PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 2024 AND INDICATIVE BUDGET FOR 2025 (IN US\$)

			Actuals 2022	2023	2024	2025
1	Staff costs					
1.1	Professional					
		Executive Secretary (D1)	199,441	209,731	193,955	197,834
	Science	Science Manager (P5)	156,175	157,578	153,979	157,059
		Stock Assessment Expert (P4)	135,718	137,920	135,007	137,707
		Fishery Officer (Science P3)	105,270	105,643	103,832	105,909
	Compliance	Compliance Manager (P5)	150,904	151,972	148,581	151,553
		Compliance Coordinator (P4)	140,806	143,330	140,209	143,013
		Compliance Officer (P3)	101,578	103,146	101,421	103,449
	Data	Data Coordinator (P4)	137,496	137,920	135,007	137,707
		Statistician (P3)	105,065	105,643	103,832	105,909
		Fishery Officer (P2) Data	-	89,230	85,680	87,394
		Fishery Officer (P1) Data	67,766	69,083	68,140	69,503
	Admin.	Administrative Officer (P3/P4)	125,747	128,190	123,073	125,535
1.2	General Servio		,	,	,	,
		Administrative Assistant	24,563	20,478	23,682	24,156
		Office Associate	21,440	17,430	20,870	21,288
		Database Assistant	24,563	20,478	23,682	24,156
		Office Assistant	15,707	13,121	15,766	16,081
		Driver	11,969	0	0	(
		Overtime	1,245	5,100	5,100	5,202
		Total Salary Costs	1,525,454	1,615,993	1,581,818	1,613,454
1.3		Employer Pension and Health	423,543	437,021	484,028	493,708
1.4		Employer FAO Entitlement Fund	632,563	670,875	700,000	714,000
1.5		Adjustment entitlement fund	27,534			
1.6		Improved Cost Recovery Uplift	75,627	78,993	80,210	81,814
		Total Staff Costs	2,684,722	2,802,883	2,846,055	2,902,976
2	<b>Operating E</b>	xpenditures				
2.1		Capacity Building	17,885	62,000	65,000	65,000
2.2		Co-funding Science/Data grants	0	0	0	(
2.3		Co-funding Compliance grants	0	0	0	(
2.4		Consultants/Service Providers	411,685	542,400	422,180	422,180
2.5		Duty travel	83,794	165,000	145,000	145,000
2.6		Meetings	182,507	17,000	84,000	84,000
2.7		Interpretation	75,964	135,000	220,000	220,000
2.8		Translation	99,412	115,000	105,000	105,000
2.9		Equipment	18,342	35,000	20,000	20,000
2.10		General Operating Expenses	60,290	76,000	83,350	83,350
2.11		Contingencies	0	10,000	10,000	10,000
		Total OE	949,879	1,157,400	1,154,530	1,154,530
<b>`</b>		SUB-TOTAL	3,634,601	3,960,283	4,000,585	4,057,506
3		Contributions Seychelles	-31,917	-28,750	-28,750	-28,750
4	FAO Servici	—	162,338	178,213	180,026	182,588
5	Meeting Pa	ticipation Fund	25,000	0	250,000	250,000
					-	
		GRAND TOTAL	3,790,022	4,109,746	4,401,862	4,461,344

APPENDIX 8 SCALE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 2024 (IN US\$)

			Average catch for					Total
	World Bank	OECD	2019-2021 ( in metric	Base	Operations	GNI	Catch	Contribution
Country	Classification in 2020		tons)	Contribution	-		Contribution	(in USD)
Australia	High	Yes	4,638	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$146,729		\$194,014
Bangladesh	Middle	No	7,479	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		\$36,682	\$4,440	\$74,642
China	Middle	No	64,809	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$38,472	\$108,674
Comoros	Middle	No	13,862	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682		\$78,431
European Union	High	Yes	238,831	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$146,729	\$708,874	\$889,123
France(Terr)	High	Yes	0	\$15,179	\$0	\$146,729	\$0	\$161,908
India	Middle	No	153,614	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$91,188	\$161,390
Indonesia	Middle	No	425,860	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$252,798	\$323,001
Iran, Islamic Republic of	Middle	No	257,777	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$153,022	\$223,224
Japan	High	Yes	11,571	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$146,729	\$34,343	\$214,592
Kenya	Middle	No	3,435	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$2,039	\$72,241
Korea, Rep of	High	Yes	21,033	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$146,729	\$62,428	\$242,677
Madagascar	Low	No	8,513	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$0	\$5,053	\$38,573
Malaysia	Middle	No	22,352	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$13,269	\$83,471
Maldives	Middle	No	141,630	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$84,074	\$154,276
Mauritius	Middle	No	24,871	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$14,764	\$84,966
Mozambique	Low	No	6,423	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$0	\$3,813	\$37,333
Oman	High	No	103,044	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$146,729	\$61,169	\$241,418
Pakistan	Middle	No	43,059	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$25,560	\$95,763
Philippines	Middle	No	0	\$15,179	1	\$36,682	\$0	\$51,861
Seychelles	High	No	133,856	\$15 <i>,</i> 179	\$18,341	\$146,729	\$79,460	\$259,708
Somalia	Low	No	0	\$15,179	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$15,179
South Africa	Middle	No	827	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$491	\$70,693
Sri Lanka	Middle	No	102,898	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$36,682	\$61,082	\$131,285
Sudan	Low	No	170	\$15,179	\$0	\$0	\$101	\$15,280
Tanzania	Middle	No	16,334	\$15,179		\$36,682	\$9,696	\$79,898
Thailand	Middle	No	22,664	\$15,179		\$36,682	\$13,454	\$83,656
United Kingdom	High	Yes	214			\$146,729	<u></u>	\$162,542
Yemen	Low	No	31,210	\$15,179	\$18,341	\$0	\$18,527	\$52,047
			Total	440,186	440,186	1,760,745	1,760,745	4,401,862
The World Bank has replaced GNP with gross national income (GNI per capita). GNI more fairly compares nations with widely different populations and standards of living.								